

Operating instructions for the SilentCloud v1

English

Caution: Federal (USA) law restricts this device to sale by or on the order of a physician, audiologist or other hearing healthcare professional.

(€₀₁₂₃



Table of Contents

TABLE OF CONTENTS	2
INTRODUCTION	3
GENERAL INFORMATION	4
INSTALLATION AND USE OF SILENTCLOUD APP	8
ADMINISTRATIVE STEPS	9
SUBSCRIPTION1	4
SETTINGS	5
QUESTIONNAIRES	6
CLINIC SELECTION / HCP FINDER	20
HOME SCREEN	3
LOCKED TILES – ADVISORY SCREEN	3
UNLOCK YOUR THERAPIES SCREEN	4
RELAXATION / YOUR CALM CORNER	'4
E&C COUNSELING / YOUR TINNITUS TUTOR	25
MESSAGES	25
ICBT & COUNSELING	6
MEDICATION	21
SELECT YOUR SOUND THERAPY	4
TINNITUS MATCH	4
ADJUSTMENT OF THE FOUNDATIONAL SOUND THERAPY	6
INTRODUCTION	6
ADJUSTMENT OF THE CUSTOM SOUND THERAPY4	0
PITCH MATCHING	3
ADJUSTMENT OF THE TONAL THERAPY SIGNAL	8
CONFIRMING OR EDITING OF SOUND THERAPY	1
HCP FITTING / PROGRAMMING	3
TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS	7
SYMBOLS	8
CONTACT	8



Introduction

Welcome to SilentCloud!

We have compiled a large portfolio of different tinnitus evaluations and therapies into a single system for you.

You will have access to 17 modules of education and counseling and SilentCloud offers to you 40 modules of cognitive behavioral therapy (iCBT).

The iCBT sessions provide a lot of useful information, counselling sessions and many exercises to help you relax and fall asleep more easily. Each of these sessions is designed to be completed in about 20 minutes.

You can repeat all the exercises as many times as you like, because we add each of the completed exercises to the exercise toolbox.

We also have included 3 Sound Therapies, that are called, Basic-, Tailored Sound- and Tailored Tonal Sound Therapy.

The SilentCloud System is a prescription only medical device. There are the above therapies that we can offer to you, however they do require the prescription of a Healthcare Professional or ENT (Ear, Nose and Throat Physician).

Fitting and Programing of therapies can ONLY be performed by qualified healthcare professionals, that are

- (a) familiar with tinnitus treatment, and
- (b) have completed the SilentCloud HCP Training, and
- (c) are associated with HCP office or clinic, which has been qualified by SilentCloud
- (c) that have been granted access by SilentCloud to the HCP Dashboard.

Patients can only use those therapies, for which they have obtained a prescription. Only after such prescription is entered and confirmed in the SilentCloud System, the HCP can start fitting / programing any of the respective therapies into the patient's mobile device (Therapy Release).

You should use the sound therapies for the duration as fitted and programmed by your Health Care Professional . Clinical research has shown that our sound therapies can significantly reduce tinnitus distress. We have targeted sound therapies for tonal or atonal tinnitus.

Please read this user manual thoroughly before using the SilentCloud app for the first time, no further training will be required.

Regarding any residual risk, please consult the sections Side Effects, Warnings and Precautions.

If you have any questions, please contact your hearing care professional, which you can select during the course of using SilentCloud.

Let's get started!



General information

Intended use

The SilentCloud in combination with a Tinnitus Management Program is a therapeutic software tool for the treatment of chronic subjective tinnitus for home use.

The target population for SilentCloud are adult tinnitus patients over 18 years.

The SilentCloud is intended to provide relief from the disturbance of chronic subjective tinnitus, while using the device.

The SilentCloud is fitted and programmed by a qualified healthcare professional familiar with tinnitus treatment.

Contraindications

There is the following contraindication for the use of SilentCloud.

• Severe mental disorders

If you suffer from a **serious mental disorder** or are uncertain about it, **you should not use SilentCloud**, but consult your family doctor, a psychologist or psychotherapist. In case of illness or suspicion of a serious mental disorder, **talking to a doctor or psychotherapist is** essential.

Please note, SilentCloud is a support in the management of a burden of chronic subjective tinnitus and cannot replace professional therapy by a psychologist or psychotherapist.

In addition, there are the following contraindications to the use of sound therapy. In the event that one or more of these contraindications occur, sound therapy should not be used.

- Auditory Hallucinations
- Symptomatic Hearing Disorders
- Morbus Meniere
- Brainstem Diseases
- Psychiatric Disorders
- Other Insufficiently treated Serious Comorbidities, (e.g. active infection, malignant cancer, active neurological pathologies)
- Temporomandibular Joint Disorders
- Objective Tinnitus
- Visible congenital or traumatic deformity of the ear
- History of active drainage from the ear within the previous 90 days
- History of sudden or rapidly progressive hearing loss within the previous 90 days
- History of semicircular canal dehiscence syndrome
- Active Cervical Pain
- Active Sore Throat



Side - Effects

For the sound therapy the following possible side effects are known.

- transient increase of tinnitus
- transient additional atonal noise
- transient additional tinnitus tone
- transient increase in tinnitus burden
- transient increase in loudness
- tinnitus frequency shift
- transient headaches
- transient increase of anxiety
- tinnitus frequency increased to >10 kHz
- transient discomfort
- transient itching of ear canals
- transient otalgia





Instructions

Please read the user manual before using SilentCloud for the first time.

The descriptions refer in each case to the illustration on the right of the text.

Warnings

We have limited the Maximum Sound Output Level of SilentCloud. We also have limited the maximum possible therapy duration to 4 hours per day. However, maximum sound output of your mobile device can lead to a high noise-exposure level. Listening to sounds at high volume beyond 8 hours per day can potential permanent damage your hearing.

Inform your hearing care professional immediately if you experience any side effects or your tinnitus is getting worse.

Precautions

When using the SilentCloud system, you have to use the same mobile device and same headphones for both the fitting and programming sections and the therapy application sections, as the programming is based on your individual mobile device/headphone combination.

The SilentCloud app has been developed and tested for use by a single user. Do not use the SilentCloud App with other people. It is important that your therapy in the SilentCloud App is approved by your healthcare provider only. Incorrect settings can lead to side effects that may affect your tinnitus.

Do not use your SilentCloud while driving a vehicle or performing any activity that requires your full attention.

Use the SilentCloud app in a quiet and silent environment.

Use the SilentCloud app at low volume first and then slowly adjust the volume.

Sound therapies in particular should be used at a volume just above the hearing threshold.

Press the Mute button, Pause button, or remove your headphones immediately if your SilentCloud App unexpectedly emits loud, atypical, or unusual sounds.

If you have any questions about using the SilentCloud app, please contact your hearing care professional.

Please note: Protect your phone with a PIN or other measures to ensure that only you have access to your private data on your mobile device.

System Requirements

SilentCloud can be installed and used on the following devices:

Apple Devices:

- o iPhone 6s or higher
- o iOS v14.5 or higher
- Standard Display Zoom mode supported only
- You need an Apple Play Store Account (Apple ID)
- o Device must be able to connect to the internet





Android Devices:

- Device needs to support Google Play Store
- Android 9 or higher
- min. Screen resolution of
- You need a Google Play Store Account
- Device must be able to connect to the internet

General functions

The SilentCloud App is a therapeutic software tool for the treatment of chronic subjective tinnitus for home use and is designed to provide you with relief from chronic subjective tinnitus.

Interruption of the therapy

If you have to interrupt the therapy for a longer period of time (e.g. for more than one month), we recommend that you complete a THI questionnaire before and after the break to document your tinnitus symptoms.



Installation and Use of SilentCloud App

How to Install SilentCloud on your Phone

To install SilentCloud on your mobile phone, visit your App Store (e.g., Google Play Store or Apple App Store) and search for SilentCloud. Follow the instructions to install SilentCloud on your phone.

Starting the SilentCloud App for the first time

After installation of SilentCloud app, you first have to find the SilentCloud icon (1) to start the app.

On iOS devices newly installed app can be found on your last screen, swipe with one finger from right to left to get to the last screen, where you will find the SilentCloud icon (1).

On Android devices, swipe up from the bottom of your screen to the top. Now you can swipe with one finger from right to left to get to the last screen, where you will find the SilentCloud icon (1).

Tap the SilentCloud icon (1) to start the app.



Closing the SilentCloud App

Normally, it is not necessary to close the SilentCloud app, but if an app won't respond or seems frozen, you can close it, then open it again. You should close an app only if it's unresponsive.

On iOS devices the way you close an app depends on the type of device that you have.

For iPhone X and later, from the Home Screen, swipe up from the bottom of the screen and pause in the middle of the screen.

Swipe right or left to find the SilentCloud app.

Swipe up on the app's preview (1) to close the app.

For iPhone SE, iPhone 8 and earlier, and iPod touch, double-click the Home button to show your most recently used apps.

Swipe right or left to find the SilentCloud app.

Swipe up on the app's preview (1) to close the app.







On Android devices, from the Home Screen, tab the III button.

Swipe right or left to find the SilentCloud app.

Swipe up on the app's preview to close the app.

Administrative steps

Onboarding

Please review the or-boarding screens prior to selecting the country of your residence.



Selection of the country

Please select your country (1) and continue by pressing the button (2).

You will find your respective country at button (1), e.g. Belgium. Press the area where your country name appears and continue in the registration process with button (2).



Note: the language of the SilentCloud app is based on the language set on the mobile device and is independent of the country selection.





Registration & Profile

In the next step you can register with SilentCloud (1) or log in if you have already done so (2).



Register

On the registration main screen you have the option to register an account with SilentCloud, by using your existing Google (1) or Apple (2) Accounts or another email address (3) of your choice (see next steps).

Please enter your email address in the area (1) first and then press the button (2) to receive a verification code.

With the button (3) you can cancel the process.

If you are already logged in, you only need to log in by pressing the button (4).







If you have received your verification code by e-mail, please enter it in the area (1) and confirm it again by pressing the button (2).

If you need a new verification code, you can request it again using the button (3).

You can cancel this process by pressing the button (4).

If you are already logged in, you only need to log in using the button (5).

This is what the screen will look like once you have entered your verification code (1).

You then only need to confirm this by pressing button (2).

In the next step of the registration process, please enter a password in area (2) and confirm it by entering the **same** password again in area (3).

The privacy policy can be accessed via the link of the button (4) (see next figure). You confirm that you have read it by ticking the box on the left (4). You must also accept the data protection declaration by ticking the box (5).

Only then can you continue with the registration using the button (6).







Important Note: Please note that the password must contain 8-16 characters, with 3 out of 4 of the following: Lowercase letters, uppercase letters, numbers and one of the following symbols: @ # \$ % ^ & * - _ + = [] { } | ` : ',? / ` ~ " () ; .



The data protection declaration can be found under the following link <u>www.silentcloud.com/privacypolicy.</u>

With the button (1) you can go back to the SilentCloud App.



Complete Profile

Enter all of the required information, i.e. First Name, Last Name, etc.

Required Information may vary by country due to local requirements.

Please enter the Postal Code of Zip-Code (1) and select your city from the drop down menu (2).

This is used to help find for you a Tinnitus Expert near you.

Select your choice in marketing preference.

You can later on edit this profile in the settings menu.





Log in

In the last step, enter your name in the button (1) and your password in the button (2). To continue, press the button (3).



Privacy policy

The privacy policy can be viewed at the following link: <u>www.silentcloud.com/privacypolicy.</u>

Successful registration

The screen of your successful registration will look as follows and you can complete the registration process by pressing the button (1).





Subscription

Introduction

You can use plenty of content without subscription. All sections of our **All about Tinnitus** program is freely available.

If you want to have access to sound therapy and iCBT, subscription gets necessary.

Please note, which therapies will be available for you depends also on the prescription by your ENT and tinnitus expert.

First, the subscription process is explained to you on an information screen. You can continue by pressing the button (1) or you can go back to the main menu by pressing the button (2).



Options

When selecting Subscribe in the previous screen, you will be introduced to the different options for your subscription, see (1) and (2).

If you had an active subscription before and for example changed your phone, you can also use the function Restore Purchase (3).

You also can go back to the previous screen by pressing the button (4).

In some countries you can purchase subscription codes based on local regulations and requirement. However, you also just subscribe via the App Stores (5).





Subscription through Apple or Play Store

Depending on your phone and its operating system you will be requested to identify yourself with your Apple Store or Google Play Store account (1).

You can also cancel this process by pressing the cancel button (2).



Confirmation of Subscription

When you have finished the subscription process, you will be informed by a smaller information window. Size and content can be different depending on your operating system.

Please confirm by pressing the button (1).



Settings

You can reach the settings via the button (1).





On the Settings page, you can call up a lot of information and initiate actions.

By pressing the buttons (1), you can call up the operating instructions and download a blank prescription form.

By pressing the buttons (2) you can access your personal profile and make changes. Furthermore, you can unsubscribe from SilentCloud and revoke your consent to data usage.

By pressing the button (3) you can delete your account and your data completely.

By pressing the button (4) you can restore a previous subscription to SilentCloud.

In the buttons area (5) you can find the Privacy Policy and Terms of Use.

By pressing the button (6) you can reach information about the app's manufacturer and get references to medical literature. At the very bottom you can also find the version number of SilentCloud.

Questionnaires

Introduction

Each module begins with a short introduction.

You reach the main menu from the introduction via the button (1).

You start the questionnaire by pressing the button (2).









Answering the questions

For each question, please select the answer that best fits your current situation. To do this, press the corresponding button (1).

You can change your answer at any time by selecting a different button.

Confirm your answer by pressing the lower button (2).

10.11.1		10-
10:44 %		.al 🕆 🔳
THI 1/25	THI 2/25	Cancel
Does the lou make it diffic people?	idness of your ti cult for you to he	nnitus ear
O Yes	205	
	les	
O No		
	Next	

Navigation within the questionnaire

At the top you will see information that allows you to navigate within the questionnaire.

In the middle (1) you can see which question you are currently on and how many questions you have to answer in total.

If you want to cancel the completion of the questionnaire, press the button (2).

If you want to go back to an earlier question, press the button (3).



Cancellation of the questionnaire

If you have to stop filling out the questionnaire, you will be informed that the answers to questions you have already completed will be lost.

To cancel the completion of the questionnaire, confirm by pressing the button (1).

If you want to continue filling in the questions, press the button (2).





Result of the questionnaire

After you have completed all the questions, you will be given a summary of the results of the questionnaire (1).

You can stop filling out the questionnaire by pressing the lower button (2). Your results will be saved.



Different question types and answer options

The different questionnaires also contain different answer options, which are briefly explained below.

Single answer

For this type of question, please choose an answer that seems most correct to you, e.g. (1).

Use the button (2) to move on to the next question.



Questions where only one answer can be selected are used exclusively in the following questionnaires:

- THI
- HQ
- GAD-7
- PHQ-9
- WHO-5

and partially used in the following questionnaires:

- TSCHQ
- Medication
- Pitch Matching



Multiple responses

Questions in which several answers can be selected are used in the context of cognitive behavioral therapy.

Answer on a scale

For questions where you select a number on a scale (1), please slide your finger over the button (2) until the desired number becomes darkly visible.

Use the button (3) to switch to the next question.



Questions that require the answer to be selected from a list will be

used exclusively in the following questionnaires:

• TFI

and partially used in the following questionnaires:

- TSCHQ
- Medication

Answer from a list

For questions where you can select from a list (1), slide your finger across the control panel (2) until the answer you want to select appears dark.

Use the button (3) to continue in the questionnaire.



Questions that require a text to be entered are sometimes used in the following questionnaires:

Medication



Enter your own text

For these questions that require text entry (1), go to the button (2) and type in the term using your mobile phone keypad. Use the button (3) to go to the next question.



Clinic Selection / HCP Finder

Introduction

Below you will find the description of the clinic finder.

To begin, read the explanations on your display and then start the Clinic Finder by pressing the buttons (1) – Get Started to Select a Shop, or where available a Telehealth Expert, i.e. such as in US and Ireland.







Location services

In the next step, you will be asked to allow the use of your current location using the button (1). This will allow you to locate the nearest clinic.



Map view

In the map view you can see nearby clinics and select them.

You can zoom in & out of the map. The preselected POS is shown in blue (1), but you can choose any other POS on the map (2) or (if available in your country) the Telehealth Expert (3).

You search for cities or postal codes by clicking on (4) and re-center the map by clicking on (5).

Information about your clinic

You will now receive detailed information on the clinics and can view each of them by sliding the button (2). Then select one of the clinics by pressing the button (1).







Confirmation of the selected clinic

Now you only need to confirm the selected clinic by pressing the button (1) or you can go back one step with the help of the button (2).





Home screen

The home screen is your primary point of contact in SlientCloud. From here you can access all content and get an overview of your achievements so far.

You always get to the start screen via the button (1) on the bottom left.

The start screen contains various content, here e.g. a button to reach Education & Counseling (2), your Sound Therapy (3), which in this example is not yet unlocked, access to iCBT (4), which is also not yet unlocked and access to demo screen (5).

You can select the Calm Corner with Relaxation sounds and exercises (6).

And most importantly you have the "Unlock Your Advanced Therapies Tile" (7), which guides you as to what to do next.

You can also book a free consultation via the Appointment Button (8) and send messages to your HCP, do this, also tap Messages (9).



Also remember to slide up the visible buttons in the home screen so that you can see all the available buttons.

Locked Tiles – Advisory Screen

Throughout the Home Screen and the Unlock Your Therapies Screen.

Clicking on Counseling or Sound Therapy on the home screen will show the "Unlock Your Therapies" dialog (1).

Clicking on Tailor Your Sound on the "Unlock Your Therapies" Screen will show the "Check Your Hearing" dialog (2).

Clicking on Subscribe on the "Unlock Your Therapies" Screen will show the "Access Your Advanced Therapies" dialog (3).





Unlock your Therapies Screen

From the home screen access "Unlock Your Therapies", where you will find a number of tasks to completed before your advanced Therapies can be unlocked

- THI (1)
- TSCHQ (2)
- Hearing Assessment (3)
- POS Finder (4)
- ENT Finder (in certain countries) (5)
- SoundAdmin (Tailor your Sound) (6)
- Subscribe (7)
- Customer Survey (not mandatory) (8)



Relaxation / Your Calm Corner

You can access your Sound Library and Exercises via the "your Calm Corner" Tile on the Home Screen or via the Relaxation Button (3) in the lower menu bar.

The Exercises (1) are arranged chronologically and unlocked once you have reached that point in E&C or iCBT. Scroll up the exercise buttons to reach all available exercises.

The Sound Library (2) offers a variety of relaxing sounds files.





E&C Counseling / Your Tinnitus Tutor

You can access your E&C lesson directly via the "Your Tinnitus Tutor" tile on the Home Screen. These are arranged chronologically. Scroll up the buttons for the E&C lesson to reach all available lessons.



Messages

This section describes the function of the Messages module in SilentCloud.

Introduction

Please read the on-screen text first before continuing (1). You can return to your other activities using the button (2).





Loading new messages

By pressing the button (1) you can recall older messages.

If you want to return to the program, press the button (2).



Notification on new message

Read new message

If you receive a reply, you will be notified and your message (1) will appear on the screen.

With button (2) you can go to the message selection and with button (3) you go back in the program.



iCBT & Counseling

SilentCloud contains both a module with 17 sections from the area of general information on tinnitus and advice on dealing with tinnitus (Education & Counseling) and a module with 40 sections from the area of Cognitive Behavioral Therapy (CBT) with elements of mindfulness teaching.

The respective sections contain similar controls, which are described here for both modules together.

The functions are described on the basis of the Education & Counseling module but are to be used for the modules of CBT.



Introduction

In the upper, middle area of your screen (1) you can see which section of the module you are currently in. Please read the text and continue using the button (2). If you would like to end the chapter, tap the button (3) to return to the main menu.

08:26 ⋪	ul ≈ ■
Hype	racusis and
Tinni	tus
Last tir	ie you learned about ear
wax an	d its removal. Today you
will foc	us on a problem, where
increas	ed sensitivity to sound
could s	tart to cause problems,
called '	hyperacusis".
	Continue

Voice-Overs

In some modules there are voice-overs that you can start by pressing the button (1). With the button (2) further down you can achieve a display of the spoken text to read along additionally.

Use the button (3) to move back one page.

Press the button (4) to continue in the program.

Use the button (5) to return to the main menu.

If you have activated the text display (1), your screen will look like this:







When the voice-over is activated, this symbol (1) appears.

In the color gradient of the green circle (2) you can then see how far the playback of the text has progressed.

You can move the text to be read along (1) in order to remain parallel to the spoken text. The pause button remains accessible at all times.

Only when the text has been pushed all the way to the top can the button be reached which displays the next content of the following chapter (1).









Questions and answers

After the chapter you have read or listened to, a question (1) will appear, which you should answer using the two buttons (2) and (3).

Press the button (4) to continue in the program.

Below is an explanation (1) of your answer. You can then continue with the button (2).





Longer texts

Longer texts that fill more than one page must be pushed up with your finger (1) so that you can finish reading them.





Only at the very end of the longer text the button (1) becomes visible, which allows to switch to the next content.



Animation

Some sections also contain animations that either start automatically or can be started using the button (1).



After that, the animations (1) run automatically and do not have to be stopped.





Calling other modules

Further content such as questionnaires or longer relaxation exercises can be accessed via the larger buttons (1). Some modules have to be executed (e.g., questionnaires or hearing tests) before proceeding. In this case, the button (2) would be greyed out as long as the module has not yet been performed. In other cases, the module can be used later (e.g., at bedtime), in which case button (2) is activated and usable. We recommend using all modules.



All larger modules can also be accessed via the main menu.

Medication

Introduction

To begin, please read the information on your screen.

Press button (1) to return to the main menu and press button (2) to continue in the sequence.







Instructions

By pressing the button (1) you activate a blue highlighted field where you can type in the substance of your medicine.



Name of the active substance

Please type in this field (1) the name of the substance of your drug using the keyboard visible below. As soon as the program recognizes the substance, suggestions will be made and the name will be completed automatically (2).



Start of medication

Here we ask you to set the approximate time when you start taking your medication (1).

By swiping over the button (2), you can select the month, the day and the year, viewed from left to right. To do this, move your finger up or down in the button (2) to reach the desired date.

Use the button (3) to continue in the program.





Questions

In this step we ask you to answer questions (1). Here you select your respective answer by tapping the button (2).

Press the button (3) to continue in the module.

With the button (4) you can end the module, whereby your previous entries of this part are not saved.

14:41 🕫		.al ≑ ∎)
K Medication	Medication	Cancel
		- 0
Do you still o medication?	ontinue to take	the
Yes 2		
O NO		
	Next	

Adding more medication

If you are taking more than one medicine at the same time, you can enter more information by pressing the button (1) and proceed exactly as you did when entering your first medicine.

If you do not want to list another drug, press the button (2).





Select Your Sound Therapy

Introduction

Prior to being able to unlock the tile "Select Your Sound Therapy" you have to complete the following:

- THI
- TSCHQ
- Hearing Assessment / QNR
- Tinnitus Match (if applicable for you)
- In some case additional QNR may be required, that you see on this screen as it become necessary. You will need to complete all of them.

The QNR completion was previous explained.

Tinnitus Match

Introduction

Please read the explanation on your screen at the beginning and then press the button (1) to continue.







Pairwise comparison of the tones

Now you will be presented with two different tones each. Please select the one that is most similar to your tinnitus (1). By pressing the buttons (2) and (3) you activate the respective tone and can also adjust the volume with the volume slider (4) according to your wishes. If you have selected the more similar tone after listening to it, it remains highlighted in blue (2) or (3) and you confirm by pressing the button (5). If you want to test the tone pair again, you can stop the process and go back one step with the button (6).



Result

Your test result then appears on the display (1) and you can continue by pressing the button (2).





Sound Therapy Selection Screen

On the Unlock Your Advanced Therapies Screen you now select Select Your Sound Therapy.

Following an Introduction Screen you will land on the Sound Therapy selection screen. What you will see here as choices show those Sound Therapies for which you have been qualified, based on your responses and assessments.

13:13 ···· 후 @ く Home Unlock Your Therapies	13:12 ···· ♀ ☎ Ack Sound Therapy Selection
Select your Sound Therapy Choose a personalized therapy BubCribe Advanced Therapies	Select your Sound Therapy Change your selection any time before starting your therapy. Recommended for you Advanced Tonal Therapy Sophisticated Neuromodulation
	Custom Sound Therapy Custom Tinnitus Masking Foundational Therapy Foundational Therapy
Home Relaxation Contact us Messages	Edit Confirm for one month

Adjustment of the Foundational Sound Therapy

Introduction

To start the program, operate the button (1).

With the button (2) you can return to the main menu.







Adjusting the volume

Volume reduction

Reduce the volume on the outside of your phone to zero. The change in color of the button (1) tells you when this has been achieved.



Raising the volume

If the volume is at the minimum position, increase the volume of your phone again to about a medium level until the button (1) changes color to blue.





Correct volume

When you have reached the correct volume for the test, a blue circle with a tick (1) appears on your display.

Only when the tick is visible can you continue by pressing the button (2).



Setting threshold right ear

By pressing the button (1) a tone sounds at the right ear (2). Using the buttons (3) and (4), please adjust the volume so that you can just barely hear the sound.

You can continue in the program using the button (5). If you want to cancel the module (6), the previous setting will not be saved.

By means of the button (7) you can go back in the program.



Setting threshold left ear

Now, by pressing the button (1), the tone sounds on the left ear (2). Please use the buttons (3) and (4) to adjust the tone so that you can just hear it and continue with the button (5) in the sequence.





Balance adjustment

In this step you start the tone (1) and adjust the volume of the tone by pressing the buttons (3) and (4) so that it sounds equally loud on both ears (2).

With the help of the button (5) you can continue in the module.



Result

Please read the explanation and close the module by tapping the button (1).

If you want to change the balance of your sound again, press the button (2).





Adjustment of the Custom Sound Therapy

Introduction

Read the following instruction and start the module by pressing the button (1).



Adjusting the volume

Volume reduction

Reduce the volume on the outside of your phone to zero by pressing the button (1).





Raising the volume

If the volume is at the minimum position, increase the volume of your phone again to about a medium level using button (1).



Correct volume

When you have reached the correct volume for the test, a blue circle with a tick (1) appears on your display.

Only when the tick is visible can you continue by pressing the button (2).



Volume 1 - Right Ear

First read the instruction (1) before you start the tape with the sound button (2). The signal will now sound in your right ear (3). By pressing the buttons (4) and (5), please adjust the volume of the signal so that you can just hear it. Continue with the button (6).







Volume 1 - Left Ear

Again, first read the instruction (1) before you start the tape with the button (2). The signal will now sound in your left ear (3). By pressing the buttons (4) and (5), please adjust the volume of the signal so that you can just hear it. Continue with the button (6).



Volume 1 - Both Ears

Also in this step please read them instruction (1) first. By pressing the button (2) you start the signal, which you now hear on both ears (3)/(4).

With the help of the buttons (5) and (6) please adjust the volume so that you can no longer hear your tinnitus or the maximum volume is reached.

Then tap button (7) or (8), depending on whether you still perceive your tinnitus or not. With button (9) you can delete the last step.

Note: tapes 2-5 are adjusted accordingly.





Operating Instructions

Result

In this step you will be shown the results of your volume determination (1). Continue in the program using the button (2).



Pitch Matching

Introduction

Each module begins with a short introduction.

You start the pitch matching by pressing the button (1).



Adjusting the volume

The next step is to set the volume to a medium value.



Setting the volume to minimum

To do this, first reduce the volume to the minimum level using the buttons on the side of your smartphone.



Increase the volume

Then increase the volume using the side buttons until the symbol in the middle of the screen (2) changes to a tick (OK sign).

If you have increased the volume too much, the arrow (2) in the middle of the screen changes direction and indicates that you need to reduce the volume slightly. This is also indicated to you via the text (1).



Medium volume reached

If you see this symbol (1), you have the correct volume setting.

Continue pitch matching by pressing the button (2).





Setting the comparison tone

The goal of the initial pitch matching is to identify a tone that sounds as similar as possible to your tinnitus.

First pass

To do this, place your finger on the blue dot in the middle (1). Moving the blue dot to the **right makes the** sound louder.

By moving the blue point (1) **upwards**, the tone becomes higher. Thus, by moving the blue point (1), you can adjust the tone to your tinnitus as far as possible.

Once you have reached the best match, release the blue dot (1) and confirm your tone by pressing the button (2).



Second round

The second pass again confirms the tone you have determined by again placing your finger on the blue dot (1) and moving it to change the volume as well as the pitch.

If you hear a tone that sounds as similar as possible to your tinnitus, release the blue dot (1) and then confirm by pressing the button (2).







Choose your Tonal Pitch

In the next part, you will be presented each the Tone selected in the first and in the second 2-D plane and can choose, which one better reseambles your Tinnitus (1).

If you are unsure, your can repeat the 2-D Planes pitch matching, until you find your pitch (2).

09:02			! † C	0
	Pitch mate	hing:		×
Select tl simila	he tone Ir to you	that i: Ir tinn	s mos itus	it
You have are simila can play t decide, w indeed th tinnitus. I problem, Pitch-Mat	chosen to r to your chem aga hich one le MOST s f you are just click ich again	wo ton tinnitu in belo of the imilar unsure on "I w	es that s. You w and two is to you , no ant to	r
		2		
This sou	nds like	my ti	nnitu	15
I want to	Pitch-l	Match	aga	

Explanation of the next step

In the next part, you will be presented with two tones and you will decide which one is more similar to your tinnitus. A total of 5 pairs of tones follows. You start the following test by pressing the button (1).





Octave Confusion

By tapping on each of the three buttons (1), (2), or (3) a different tone sounds in each case. You can listen to it as often as you like to decide which of the three tones is more similar to your tinnitus.

The sound you tap (1), (2) or (3) appears in blue when it is played.

Once you have decided which tone seems more similar to you, tap it (1), (2) or (3) and the area appears in blue. Then confirm your decision by pressing the button "This sounds like my Tinnitus" (4)., or "I want to Pitch-Match again" (5), if neither of the three tones is mostly similar to your Tinnitus.



Residual Inhibition (Experience)

In the following we ask you to listen to the tone you previously have selected for about 30 seconds. For many patient the tinnitus temporarily disappears. That is called Residual Inhibition. Please answer the question after you have listened for the 30 seconds.





Aborting the Pitch Matching

If you exit the module at any time by confirming with button (1), your previous data will not be saved.

You can repeat the test after it has been cancelled.

By pressing the button (2) you can interrupt the abort process and return to the current position in the module.

11:47 🕫		.al 😤 🖿
	Rating	Cancel
How good yo procedure wa	ur pitch match is?	ning
O Not so go	od	
O Moderate		
Good		
Very good	i	
	Done	
If you exit this n discarded. You ca bey	nminent Data Loss iodule, your current n repeat this test an inning any time late	results will be d start from the t
(iscard results	>
	2	e C

Result

When the tests are finished, the result of your test will appear on your screen (1).

By tapping the button (2) you continue with the rest of the program.



Adjustment of the tonal therapy signal

Introduction

The steps for adjusting the tonal therapy signal are described below.



Please read the explanations before you start.

Press the button "Get Started".



nd equally loud. Get started

Volume adjustment

Please reduce the volume to zero on the side of your mobile phone. Then carefully increase the volume again until the tick appears in the blue circle (3).

With the button (1) you can go back one step and leave the module by pressing the button (2).

Continue the sequence by pressing the button (4).



Setting the four stimulation tones for the right ear

Use the button (1) to start playing the four stimulation tones for your right ear first (2). If, for example, you want to change the third tone (3), you can change its volume with the buttons (4) and (5) so that the volume seems similar to the other three tones. Continue in this way with all four tones. Eventually, all tones should sound the same to you.

Press the button (6) to continue in the sequence.

You can delete your settings again using the button (7).

Press the button (8) to go back in the program.

The volume of the four individual tones for the left ear is set accordingly.





Adjusting the signal balance

This step is about setting the volume of the stimulation tones the same for both ears (2) and (3).

Use the button (1) to start playing the tones. By pressing the buttons (4) and (5) you adjust the volume of the left and right ear respectively so that the stimulation tones are heard equally loudly in both ears.

Press the button (6) to continue in the sequence.

Use button (7) to delete your current settings and button (8) to return to the program.



Closing

At the end you only need to read the text and can continue the program with the help of the button (1).

Press the button (2) to return to the balance setting if you want to change it again.





Confirming or Editing of sound therapy

The following section describes the steps for using sound therapy.

Select Your Sound Therapy

This screen you have seen previously, but now you either choose to set up another Sound therapy or to confirm one that you have already set-up.

Select the Sound Therapy you want, it will turn green, i.e. here Advanced Tonal (1) and the then click either "Edit Advanced Tonal Therapy" (2) to redo the set-up or "Confirm for one month" (3).

Once confirmed you will be presented the Introduction Screen of the selected Sound Therapy and you can get Started.



Application of sound therapy

With the start button (1) your sound therapy starts and changes to a pause button. At the same time the duration of the therapy time (2) is displayed.

The green background indicates which ear (3) and (4) is receiving the sound stimulation.

In the upper center (5) you see your current position in the module.

By pressing the button (6) you will get more information about the sound therapy.

Use the button (7) to return to the main menu.





Information

To read the text in full, please slide it up the screen.

If you have read the information to the end, confirm this with the OK button (1) at the bottom.





HCP Fitting / Programming

Introduction

Fitting and Programing of therapies can ONLY be performed and supervised by qualified healthcare professionals, that are

- (a) familiar with tinnitus treatment, and
- (b) have completed the SilentCloud HCP Training, and
- (c) are associated with HCP office or clinic, which has been qualified by SilentCloud
- (c) that been granted access by SilentCloud to the HCP Dashboard.
- (d) Patients can only use those therapies, for which they have obtained a prescription.
 - *i.* First, the HCP provide the patient's prescription to SilentCloud System before any of the actually prescribed therapy can be programmed/fitted or edited and released into respective Patient device.
 - *ii.* Then, the HCP assigned to a respective patient may review all relevant data that have been collected for a respective patient, i.e. THI, TFI, VAS, GAD-7, PHQ-9, scores and individual response details.
 - iii. The patient will also, either face-to-face or remotely, complete sound therapy assessments, guided by the HCP, who reviews the recorded data, and may ask patients to repeat certain assessments, (which the HCP find important or relevant) guided by the HCP or the HCP can schedule another appointment to see the patient. The HCP communicates either face-to-face (directly) or via message or email with his/her patients.
 - iv. Finally, only after the HCP is satisfied with the various therapy parameters, that he/she wants program into the patient device, then he/she will program such fitting to the patient's device. Until such time, the patient cannot use any therapy on his/her device. **Note:** The HCP can also stop or edit therapies any of the therapies at any time.

Patient List on HCP Dashboard

In the Patient List (1) the HCP can select the patient to be fitted / programmed. Then, on the HCP Dashboard in the Tab Diagnostics & Assessment (2) the fitting HCP can review all of the detailed questionnaire data (3) collected and all the individual data recorded during the therapy sound assessments (4) prior to fitting / programming the respective patient device.

Gentleed"	Herne & Pationes & Todd Mole >	Olugnosis & Assessment		6		Import/labore	(Q. Seathan)
NP for kinetig lense keipen	Correleve	Mession	Diagnosts &	Assessment	Thesepy	Details	Search adjustices report
17 Tala 10 Palera	C Todel Mob 15 d400 115 deeb 452 Instruction of the control of the Tele (1212) 8000	965 (1264)(1968) 201	Smart	Hearing eld × 9	harrey 5000 J	acand AcT 1097 encoy √- □ /2*217 △198	Responsioner Task
Metorgen	Questional 3				lated reads	Eate restor	
6. Cockpit	> Timitus Handicap Inv	(0.01) extra			- Severe	3024-84-15	
AL ENTSymbolies	> TID4Q / Medical Hist	*			() Bath cars, equal	ly 2004-04-16	
	Terral Sound Name Terral	9			Lidest results	Data shaled	
	> Basic Sound Assessme	0.ml			e -		
	> Heating Screening ()				🔊 Foor	2024-84-15	
	> Sound Finder ()				👩 Tonal	3024-84-15	
	> Tailared Tanal Access	nent 🕞			- 1825 Ha 🙁 22	8 × 2004-01-15	
	> Toilared Sound Asses	anent 😳			😣 Mashing abserv	ed 2024-04-15	
Lange (1999)							



In the Patient List (1) the HCP can review all relevant details for all completed questionnaires (such THI (2)), assessments, included the evolution of scores as well as the entire patient history as recorded by SilentCloud.

💕 StentClow(*	j tame o Vallance o Ratar Mode	- Segren i & Arammand		Stephen Terrer States
er oa kineren beken	Ocerview	Tinoitus Handican Inus	.0	Datable Constantioners and
Taske	C Yedel Mot	3324-04-16		Aut Icat
а минн 🚺	Amail yetniholog je 1962-612/124/00/18	L Personal of pour time lack is it difficult for you raisoferem and	Yes	Apple Ches Chestering
Menages	Conditionary .	 One the budiess of your times a make it difficult for you to have namely? 	100	the model
Gockar	w Three has manufactured			2128-09.14
L ENT Statutes	110	1. (Sold your transfeld make you angry)	Screetinger	University of the International States of the Internationa
		6. Som your limit as write you find surface $\mathcal T$	Bo	
	200 m m	3. Decause of poor connect, do peopleal decompeti-	Yes	
		8. So you complian a grint later blood your timet with	396	
		3 . Recause of year the fact, the producer could in falling to the product regulation ${\rm sign}(1)$	Yes	illete e
	> ISOHD / Mindical	8. So yes first as thereasy yes can we except your involved	Sowtrei	20200-0
	fore-Sound name	 Consequer treature anticiper with generaliting to regar parts such that hidden back as gaining as the dimension in the many insti- 	Ye	One marine
	2 Barle Source Assos	to Revaule of sour strates, on any Relich granted?	Sameters	
-	5 Meaning Reconstruction		- Arrent	1221-14-14
And And	> Seand Rinder @			1124 (3.00

Request Patient to do a new or repeat a task

At any time, and especially prior to fitting / programming, the HCP can ask the patient to repeat anyone of the questionnaires or therapy sound assessments, i.e. "Request new Task". The data of such repeated tasks are again recorded in the dataset of the particular patient and reviewed by the HCP.

The HCP interacts with the patients either directly face-to-face or via the messaging tool. "New Task Requests" are sent to patient's SilentCloud App.

StensCloud"	Home > Patients > Nobel Mode	> Diagnasis & Assessmen			Report Patient Q, Search.
ROTAL R Soring Code: Mayor	Overview	Messages	Diagnosis & Assessment	Therapy	Details Download patient report
🖻 Tasks	😧 Yodel Mab		Export THilecore Hearing	Journey Sound	Aut KBT
Ø Patients	Di anati ti da accia di Brisali podelmalogigi Tel: e 1212010178		Request new Task		10 Mart Charles Tack
Messages	Questionvalues	O Traina Reacto	aliversity (140		Enteroryated
di Ceckpit	 Timitas Hendicas 	O Vacal Analog Sc	Ar OWS		2024-04-16
JL ENT Statistics	Date	O Hearing Screenie O Triveraic Fainceson	9 al Indae (198		Show Matime
	2634-04-96	Correct Insirty	Samler (080-7)		
		O resent hants o	erciennelle #195.9		
		O with the system	(MHD-S)		
		O Hypersonia dare	tionaire (HQ)		
		O Sound Administr	ition		301013
	> TSCHQ / Medical P	in the state of the	the consciently	Request selected	3034-04-16
	Renal/Sound Assess				Exter-created
	> Rasic Sound Assess	nenc 🛈			
	> Hearing Screening (99 Pase	202.8.94-18
Artable SHE	> Sound Finder ()			40 Tonal	2034-04-16

Furthermore, the HCP can see all other patient related information in the Overview and Details Tabs.

HCP enters Prescription

In order to fit / program the patient device, the HCP has to first enter the "prescription" information into the system.

The SilentCloud System will not allow any fitting / programing of any therapy of the patient device, by the HCP, before the respective "Prescription" has been entered.

Personal info Name: Maduar Pridee Birthdar. 2001;01:40	Correct on Form
Prescribing ENT / HCP / AUD Inter First Name Inter Last Name	Convertig entered
Signing Date Enter Spring Date	Connectly entered
Assessment of Tinnitus Subjective Opjective	Correctly entered
Indication for Hearing aid INS O No	Correctly entered
Intelligy rescription Search Therapy r ™m ™m Copyright Exhavior Therapy ™m ™m ™m ™m ™m ™m ™m ™m ™m ™m ™m ™m ™m ™m	Latency emers
I confirm the correct entry and signature on Ferm	Kome being Spr



HCP/ENT enters Prescription via CODE from Simple Dashboard

In order to fit / program the patient device, the HCP has to first enter the "prescription" information into the system via the CODE Feature

The SilentCloud System will not allow any fitting / programing of any therapy of the patient device, by the HCP, before the respective "Prescription" has been entered.

Dr. Gilet	SilentCloud Th							51	dvanced Dashboard	Markus Hall		Logout
Qs	earch	ode										0
0	Active Ξ Subscribed & Unsubscribed Ξ										Show all	Ø
Q,	Name	Date of Birth	THI-score	Email	Registration Date	AaT	iCBT	ST	Prescription Entry	Acti	ons	
	Dr. Markus iOS II(223) Haller	2002-01-01	100/100	nabipir298@provko.com	2025-04-07	0/17	1/40	0/7	2025-04-07	ø		
	Schmendrik Pumpe	2002-04-06	16/100	v2kwbdhtz7@privaterelay.appleid.com	2025-04-10	0/17	0/40	0/7	2025-04-10	0		
~	Dr. Markus iOS(227) Video Haller	2001-01-01	5	fetapec253@noroasis.com	2025-04-10	0/17	0/40	0/7	2025-04-10	ø		
1	Dr. Markus Haller	1997-07-07	8	balak45424@jarars.com	2025-02-19	0/17	0/40	0/7	-	ø	4	
	Markus Android II Haller	2001-01-01	42/100	tiyosa9886@clubemp.com	2025-04-11	0/17	0/40	0/7	2025-04-11	ø	*	



HCP Programming / Fitting - Patient Device

The HCP can select and program any of those therapies into patient's device, which are (a) prescribed and (b) for which that patient has successfully demonstrated eligibility.

For each of the eligible therapies, the HCP reviews relevant parameters, such as Pitch Frequency, Masking Bands, etc. prior to programming the patient device. The HCP may also ask the patient to repeat anyone of the assessments.

The HCP can choose between up to three sound therapies and/or Counselling (CBT) (2) in the Therapy Tab of the HCP Dashboard (1).





For each of the Sound Therapies, that HCP wants program into the device, the SilentCloud System will calculate a NIOSH compliant maximum allowed therapy duration. The HCP can select any duration, that is less than or equal to the maximum allowed duration (1).

The HCP can also deactivate (stop) any therapy at any time - NONE / No Therapy.





Should the HCP after careful review of the patient's dataset believe, that a sound therapy duration, longer than the maximum allowed duration, would be more appropriate for the particular patient, he/she will be shown the warning on the right (1).

Only after the HCP completes all the above steps and accepts and confirms his fitting / programming for the patient, then the therapy is "released" to the patient's device.

The HCP may also, after careful review of the patient's dataset, release, edit or stop the counselling therapy, i.e. CBT.

The HCP can also deactivate (stop) any CBT at any time - No CBT.







Technical Specifications

- Mobile Patient App is usable at your Own Mobile Device with iOS v14 or higher or Android v9 or higher
- Dimensions: not applicable since software only product
- Sound Presentation
 - o Sampling rate: 48.000 Hz
 - o Output: Digital through iOS/Android integrated sound chip
 - Output Range zero to max output as defined by HCP (max output of device combinations ≤ 110 dB, device controls, that only therapy application is allowed, that does not harm the hearing)
- Adjustability of sound presentation during sound administration
 - +/- buttons: 1-2 dB FS
 - o L/R buttons: 1-2 dB FS
- Frequency Bands for Foundational Sound Therapy
 Diale pairs
 - Pink noise
- Frequency Bands for Custom Sound Therapy
 - \circ $\,$ Band 1: 100 3.700 Hz $\,$
 - Band 2: 3.700 5.300 Hz
 - Band 3: 5.300 7.700 Hz
 - Band 4: 7.700 12.000 Hz
 - \circ $\:$ Band 5: 12.000 Hz 15.000 Hz
 - o Within band: white noise
 - Stop band attenuation: 60 dB
- Pitch Matching Procedure
 - Frequency Boundaries: 200 14.000 Hz
 - Verification passed with Quality Factor ≥ 20%
- Advanced Tonal Therapy Signal
 - Number of tones: 4, sinusoidal tones, Hanning windows
 - Frequency range: 0.74 1.4 times tinnitus frequency
 - Repetition Rate: 1.5 Hz
 - Tone duration: 150 ms
- Psychometric Assessments
 - Tinnitus Handicap Inventory (THI)
 - Tinnitus Functional Index (TFI)
 - Visual Analogue Scale (VAS)
 - Patient Health Questionnaire (PHQ-9)
 - o General Anxiety Disorder Questionnaire (GAD-7)
 - Hyperacusis Questionnaire
 - World Health Organization Five Will-Being Index (WHO-5)
- Psychoacoustic Assessments
 - Pitch Matching
 - Sound Administration
- The following aspects are not applicable since SilentCloud is a medical software only:
 - o MRI safety
 - Storage Conditions and Shelf Life
 - Cleaning & Disinfection
 - Information on microbiological state
 - Information on packaging
 - o Information on sterilization method
 - Information on reusable device
- Preventive inspection and maintenance to be performed including the frequency of such maintenance measures for non-implantable parts: not applicable
- Information on reusable device: not applicable since SilentCloud is medical software



Symbols

This section describes icons used in SilentCloud.

Symbol	Meaning
MD	Medical Device
REF	Reference number
SN	Serial number
	Manufacturer
(internet in the second s	See operating instructions
C E ₀₁₂₃	European conformity marking incl. Notified Body number
Rx only	Federal (USA) law restricts this device to sale by or on the order of a physician, audiologist or other hearing healthcare professional.
CH REP	Swiss authorized representative (CH-REP)
UK REP	UK authorized representative (UK-REP)

Contact Manufacturer

Aureliym GmbH Hauptstrasse 96 53474 Bad Neuenahr-Ahrweiler Germany info@aureliym.com +49 (0) 2641 9060 740

www.aureliym.com

Australia Sponsor

Neurosensory

Turbot Place, Level 12 179 Turbot Street Brisbane, QLD 4000 Australia Note: if you have any problems, please contact your tinnitus expert of choice directly.



Ikidenya LTD 21 Arlington Street London, SW1A 1RN England, United Kingdom



SWISSTINNITUS AG Marktstrasse 7a 6060 Sarnen Switzerland info@swisstinnitus.ch +41 (0) 41 661 25 50 www.swisstinnitus.ch